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Situated on Vermont Route 7 in Pittsford, Vermont, the Thomas H, Palmer House is a two-
and-one-half story, five-bay brick structure with a gable roof, set on a marble founda-
tion. The main rectangular structure is laid in seven-course American bond. A small,
two-story, two-bay wood frame ell with a gabled roof projects from the left (east) ele-
vation. The ell is a 20th century addition.

In the central bay of the main (north) facade is a two-story bay with a pedimented cross
gable; a bay window is at the second floor level with a full bracketed entablature. This
is supported by square wooden posts at the first floor level forming an open entry porch.
The paneled treatment at the base of the posts, together with the treatment of the brac-
kets, would stylistically date this bay to the Italianate Revival period, circa 1870.
Within the open porch is the main entry to the house, which includes a segmental lou-
vered fan with sidelights flanking a large, double-leaf paneled door. The fenestration
on the main facade contains 6/6 sash with marble splayed lintels, Wooden louvered shut-
ters frame each window.

Besides the aforementioned ell, the east elevation contains two baysj the central bay

contains a side entry, characterized by a segmental louvered fan, similar in treatment
to that found on the main elevation. The windows on the east elevation are identical

to those found on the north elevation.

The west elevation consists of three bays containing 6/6 sash with identical windows to
those found on the north and east elevations.

The rear elevation consists of five bays, the lower story of which consists of a large
20th century bay window which runs the length of three bays. The remaining windows are
identical to those found throughout the rest of the building; the continuity, unfortu-
nately, broken by the modernization.

A full cornice graces the eaves of the building and dates from the date of the house's
construction.

On the interior, the house is planned around a central hall. The original hall and four-
room floor plan is extant throughout the house. Original wood trim and mantles are pre-
served in a double parlor on the west side of the first floor and are elaborately treated
with Greek Revival motifs, original to the initial construction of the house.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of the Palmer house derives from the career of its first owner, Thomas

H. Palmer, and from its design.

Palmer was an influential educator in Vermont, and his

house reflects a refined taste which was probably influenced by his experiences in Phil-
adelphia.

Palmer was a native of Scotland and came to Vermont from Philadelphia where he had ori-
ly settled in 1801 and established a printing business. Palmer moved to Pittsford

ginal

in 1828, and became school superintendent.

He immediately began a reform program for

the Pittsford schools, which resulted ultimately in Palmer's working toward a program of

educational reform throughout the entire state.

noted in an early history of the town, which notes;

Palmer's role in Pittsford's schools is

"Mr. Palmer became distinguished throughout the state for his interest and
effectual labor for the improvement of the schools. He held the office of
town superintendent, and finding the condition of the schools anything but
what it should have been, he set vigorously to work for their improvement.
In this work he was eminently successful, and he was soon persuaded to ex-

tend his labors and hold educational meetings in other towns.

In 1844, he

was invited by Governor Slade to visit Middlebury to explain his views to the
college faculty, and it was there determined that the school laws of the state
should be remodeled. After this Mr. Palmer canvassed the state in the school
interest and started the scheme which resulted in memorializing the legisla-
ture and the passage of the necessary laws." Smith § Rand, History of Rutland

County-Pittsford, p. 750-751.

In Pittsford, Palmer was the leading impetus for the establishment of a free public 1i-

brary, c.
Movement of the 1850's.

orial to United States President Fillmore, requesting him,

1838, and was also instrumental in the town's active role in the National Peace
Through Palmer's work in this direction, the town sent a mem-

"To propose to all nations with whom we have intercourse, a provision
in our treaties with them for referring to the decision of umpires all mis-
understandings that cannot be satisfactorily adjusted by amicable negotiation."

Hemenway, Vol. III, p. 960.

Architecturally, the Palmer house is an excellent example of a transitional Federal-Greek
Revival house, and is stylistically more elaborate than most found in the Rutland-Pittsford
Perhaps because of Palmer's former residence in Philadelphia, the first owner la-
vished a good deal of expense on the interior, as evident in the southwest parlor and

area.

dining room, the only rooms remaining relatively unaltered.

The house's site remains
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relatively unaltered and currently functions as horse pastures and riding rings.

The nominated property consists of the house and one acre of land, out of a total

parcel of 17 acres under the same ownership.
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The nominated property consists of the Palmer House and one acre of land, defined
as a square which is 208' on each side, the diagonals of which (connecting opposite
corners of the square) intersect at the intersection of the diagonals connecting

opposite corners of the main block of the house.



